
 

 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY JUNE 10, 2019 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business are 

public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may therefore be 

subject to public disclosure.   
 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance  
2. Welcome 

 

G. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments 

may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any 

item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting May 20, 2019. 
 
2. Motion to Approve a Liquor License Renewal for Kum & Go #254, located at 620 S. 

Downey Street, West Branch, IA 52358. 
 

 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

3. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. Second Reading Ordinance 776 – An Ordinance Vacating Alleys Located in the City 
of West Branch. 
 

2. First Reading Amending Chapter 50 of the Code of Ordinances: Entitled Nuisance 
Abatement Procedure. 

 
3. Resolution 1814 – A Resolution Setting Salaries for Appointed Officers and 

Employees of the City of West Branch, Iowa for Fiscal Year 2019 – 2020. 
 
4. Resolution 1815 – A Resolution Approving an Agreement Between the Iowa 

Department of Natural Resources and the City of West Branch Accepting the terms 
of a Derelict Building Grant for the Amount of $50,960.   

 
5. Resolution 1816 – A Resolution Approving the Bid Requirements and 

Specifications for Asbestos Removal of 325 E. Green Street. 
 
6. Discussion Item:  Consideration of a Request to Pave the Alley between 4th and 5th. 
 
7. Discussion Item:  Consideration of a Request to allow the residents of the west 

side of Scott Street to maintain public right-of-way along the “Wapsi-West” creek.   
 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The 

minutes are not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting          May 20, 2019 
Council Chambers          7:00 p.m.                                                                                                      
  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin then 

invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   

Roll call: Council members:  Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman and Nick Goodweiler were present. Jordan Ellyson 

and Brian Pierce were absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator 

Redmond Jones, Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick, City Attorney Kevin Olson, City Engineer Dave Schechinger, Chief 

Mike Horihan, Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell, Library Director Nick Shimmin and Finance Officer 

Gordon Edgar. 
 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

Pete Swisher, National Park Superintendent shared information for an upcoming event later this summer.  The 

event will be held August 21-25 and will celebrate the park’s 103rd year.   Swisher said the event will include a 

blow up 360 degree theatre featuring the Red Tails and veterans are invited to attend.  In addition, BF Burt will 

perform on the Village Green, visitors can attend a prairie walk and the NPS will host a picnic in the park.  

Information is available at the visitor center. 
 
Library Director Shimmin presented new tablets to the Council to replace the aging ones currently in use and 

encouraged the Council to use them and direct all questions to him.  Shimmin then presented the first city 

newsletter which was created in a joint effort by the library and park & recreation staff.  The newsletter is 

available on the city website, city office and will be distributed around town.  Shimmin said the newsletter is 

intended to provide information to residents on upcoming events in West Branch. 
 
APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 

Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting May 6, 2019. 

Motion to Approve a Liquor License for BP Amoco dba Parkside Petroleum LLC., located at 401 Parkside Drive. 

Motion to Approve a Special Event Permit Application for Summer Festival (Event Coordinator Mike Jones). 

Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
 
May Claims and April Revenue 
 
EXPENDITURES     5/20/2019  
    
ALLIANT ENERGY     UTILITIES-CUBBY PARK    11,574.74  
ALPHA GRAPHICS     SUPPLIES      72.08  
AMAZON      BOOKS, OFFICE SUPPLIES    623.90  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS      617.37  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY    SUPPLIES      117.77  
BP AMOCO     VEHICLE FUEL     753.80  
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER    RECORDING FEES     53.00  
CJ COOPER & ASSOCIATES    DRUG TESTING     134.80  
CROELL,  INC.     GRAVEL      414.48  
DEMCO      SUPPLIES      818.22  
DEWEYS JACK & JILL     SUPPLIES      41.82  
EASTERN IOWA BRASS BAND    DEPOSIT      1,500.00  
EBSCO INDUSTRIES, INC    SUBSCRIPTIONS     665.90  
ECONO SIGNS LLC     SIGNS      3,001.86  
ELDON C STUTSMAN INC    SUPPLIES      109.20  
ELITE HOLDING COMPANY    SAFETY CLOTHING     542.94  
FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. INC    UNIFORMS/SUPPLIES     432.00  
HARRY'S CUSTOM TROPHIES LTD    SOCCER MEDALS     150.00  

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

JOHNSON CONTROLS     REPAIR SERVICE     2,122.80  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC    RECYCLING APRIL 2019    3,956.75  
JOURNEYED COM INC     SOFTWARE LICENSE     139.96  
KIESLER POLICE SUPPLY, INC    SUPPLIES      122.00  
KIRKWOOD COMM. COLLEGE    TRAINING      475.00  
L. L. PELLING CO. INC     SUPPLIES      1,829.65  
LENOCH & CILEK     SUPPLIES      145.90  
LINN COUNTY R.E.C.     STREET LIGHTS     152.65  
MENARDS      SUPPLIES      661.64  
MISCELLANEOUS VENDOR    BRIAN DRISCOLL:REFUND    45.00  
NAEMT      TRAINING      160.00  
NEEDHAM EXCAVATING, INC    308 PV PARK CONST     293,821.57  
OASIS ELECTRIC LLC     ELECTRICAL SERVICE-EQUIPMENT   5,400.57  
OFFICE OF AUDITOR OF STATE    AUDIT SERVICES     13,579.28  
OVERDRIVE INC     AUDIO BOOKS     778.91  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER   LIB REPLENISH POSTAGE METER    1,003.50  
 
PLAY IT AGAIN SPORTS    SUPPLIES      907.80  
PUTNAM MUSEUM & IMAX THEATRE   LIBRARY PASSES     50.00  
QUALITY ENGRAVED SIGNS    NAME PLATE     20.00  
QUILL CORP     OFFICE SUPPLIES     370.47  
RIVER PRODUCTS COMPANY INC    ROCK      963.49  
STATE HYGIENIC LAB     LAB ANALYSIS     328.50  
STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS    CHEMICALS     244.00  
STEVEN M BERRY     BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    289.57  
TAYLOR CONSTRUCTION INC    COLL ST BRIDGE & RELATED WORK   361,163.95  
UNIFORM DEN INC.     UNIFORMS     280.90  
UPS      SHIPPING      34.23  
US BANK CORPORATE CARD    SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT    4,056.58  
USA BLUE BOOK     SUPPLIES      403.03  
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC   SUPPLIES      313.69  
WEST BRANCH FORD     VEHICLE REPAIR     633.08  
WEST BRANCH TIMES     SUBSCRIPTION     775.41  
WEX BANK      VEHICLE FUEL     1,255.22  
ZACK MURDOCK     MEALS      150.18  
    
TOTAL            718,259.16  
    
PAYROLL      5/17/2019      55,749.83  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
    
CROY, DAKOTA     UTILITY REFUND     78.78  
HILL, SHERRY     UTILITY REFUND     66.45  
    
TOTAL            145.23  
    
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES          774,154.22  
    
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND     53,107.03  
022   CIVIC CENTER     417.20  
031   LIBRARY     12,753.75  
110   ROAD USE TAX     10,866.45  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   12,998.14  
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY  295,850.73  
310   COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE   203,051.04  
318   COLLEGE ST & 2ND ST IMP PROJECT  158,112.91  
600   WATER FUND     11,537.23  
610   SEWER FUND     15,459.74  
    
GRAND TOTAL     774,154.22 

 
REVENUE-FISCAL YEAR 2019  
FUND APRIL 
  



 

 

001  GENERAL FUND     360,553.17  
022  CIVIC CENTER     4,708.93  
031  LIBRARY     10,766.34  
036  TORT LIABILITY     12,646.50  
110  ROAD USE TAX     12,637.34  
112  TRUST & AGENCY    79,248.38  
119  EMERGENCY TAX FUND    9,975.10  
121  LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX    16,222.62  
125  TIF     174,118.56  
226  DEBT SERVICE     88,824.77  
500  CEMETERY PERPETUAL FUND   300.48  
502  KROUTH INTEREST FUND    0.17  
600  WATER FUND     41,981.05  
610  SEWER FUND     36,990.72  
740  STORM WATER UTILITY    4,957.89  
TOTAL      853,932.02 
 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler, 

Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Ellyson and Pierce.  Motion carried.   

 
PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA 
Resolution 1799 – Approving Change Order #8 for $5,485.75 for the Lift Rental Expense Related to Work 

Stoppage, Additional Installation Labor, and Material Transportation related to the Pavilion Panels. /Move to 

action. 

Point Builders, Gabe Kenicker was present.  Jones said the contractor, Point Builders had prepared a revised 

change order for the work to remove and apply a film to the panels for the concession stand.  The original change 

order submitted has been reduced by more than two thousand dollars.  Stoolman stated that the labor charges were 

outrageous at ninety dollars an hour and felt the number of hours charged to transfer the panels from Cubby park 

to the public works shop were excessive. Stoolman said she would be voting “No” until the labor costs were 

reduced further. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1799.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Miller.  NAYS:  

Stoolman.  Absent:  Ellyson, Pierce.  Motion failed.   

 
 
Public Hearing: Regarding the Proposal to Vacate Certain Alleys Located in the City of West Branch.   

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:24 p.m.  Jose Carrillo, 320 N. 4th St. West Branch, was present and asked 

for clarification on which alley was being vacated with the proposed ordinance.  Olson explained that several 

alleys were vacated in 2007 but not all of them were recorded with Cedar County.  Olson went on to explain that 

the alley to the south of his property was being officially vacated at this time.  Carrillo said there was also an alley 

at the rear of his property that the County didn’t have recorded as vacated as well.  Olson said he would look into 

that at a later time.  Dave Peden, 35 Greenview asked if vacated alleys had utilities located.  Carrillo said he was 

not aware of any utilities in this area as there have been no indication in the forty seven years that he’s lived at his 

property.  Bonnie Willoughby, 630 E. Main St. said she is wanting to build a garage in the rear of her property 

and requested the alley at the rear of her property.  Willoughby said the alley in its current condition is not 

accessible and dead ends at the east of her property.  There were no other comments.  Laughlin closed the public 

hearing at 7:35 p.m. 

 

First Reading Ordinance 776 – An Ordinance Vacating Alleys Located in the City of West Branch. /Move to 

action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve the first reading of Ordinance 776.  AYES:  Goodweiler, 

Stoolman, Miller.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Ellyson, Pierce.  Motion carried. 

 

Discussion: Evaluating / Prioritizing Wapsinonic Creek widening preliminary cost and other park related 

improvements.  



 

 

Jones recapped the information on the quote for the creek widening and stated that the storm water utility fund has 

approximately one hundred thousand dollars available toward the project.  Other funds could be made available 

from the value engineering from Cubby Park.  The council reviewed the information provided and determined 

that items needed for Cubby Park take priority.  Laughlin said once Cubby Park has what it needs, then at that 

time they can determine what funds are available for the creek project. 
 
Discussion: Garbage collection contract and potential switch to automated waste can service. 

Jones explained that the city’s current vendor, Johnson County Refuse is moving towards a fully automated trash 

collection service.  The vendor has provided the city with quotes for two different can sizes based on residential 

needs.  Jones reminded that the quotes provided, include the mandatory recycling charge of $4.75.   Jones went on 

to explain the potential increase in fees for some residents and listed pros and cons with the change.  Jones stated 

the current contract expires June 30, 2020 so decisions will need to be made so as to not have a disruption in 

service.  Jones suggested doing an RPF process to gain other service options.  Council members Miller and 

Goodweiler were in support of the change, Stoolman expressed her concern with additional fees to residents.  City 

Attorney Olson noted that the city code may also need to be updated with any change and that he would work 

with Jones when moving forward. 
 
Discussion: New and revamped proposed Nuisance Abatement Ordinance and process. 

Jones provided a draft ordinance to the Council for the city’s nuisance abatement process.  Jones said that recently 

Clinton Iowa rewrote their nuisance code and have been very successful with overcoming their nuisance property 

problems.  Jones said he and staff had recently attended a nuisance conference and much information and insight 

was gained.  Jones asked the Council to review the current and draft ordinance and provide any feedback.  

Laughlin also mentioned that a committee should be established for handling the nuisance process which would 

include himself and one or two council members along with staff. 
 
Resolution 1810 – Approving Change Order #1 in the amount of $2,822.50 in project savings for the College 

Street Bridge Project. / Move to action.  

Schechinger explained that the change order for this portion of the project came in under budget.  Manholes were 

planned to be replaced but were found in good condition and therefore did not need full replacement. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1810.  AYES:  Stoolman, Goodweiler, Miller.  

NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Ellyson, Pierce.  Motion carried.   
 
Resolution 1811 – Approving Partial Pay Estimate # 1 in the amount of $361,163.95 to Taylor Construction Inc. 

for the College Street Bridge Project. /Move to action. 

Schechinger gave an update on the projects progress and said that things were going better than expected.  

Schechinger recommended approval for the partial pay estimate. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1811.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Stoolman, Miller. 

NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Ellyson, Pierce. Motion carried.   
 
Resolution 1812 – Approving an agreement allowing the use of right-of-way for hauling. /Move to action. 

By Council direction from the last council meeting, Olson drafted an agreement between the developer and the 

City for Sexton to repair any damage to Greenview Drive from the truck hauling traffic.  Dave and Kathy Peden, 

35 Greenview Drive, expressed concerns over dust being generated from the hauling of dirt and requested that 

Sexton maintain a semi-dustless surface during the process.  Peden stated that there was a city ordinance for dust 

and that it should be enforced.  Olson was not aware of the dust ordinance Peden was referencing but said he 

would look into it.  Sexton said he would try to limit the dust created. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1812.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Stoolman, Miller.  

NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Ellyson, Pierce.  Motion carried.   
 
Resolution 1813 – Approving quotes in the amount of $62,531.50 from L.L. Pelling Company, Inc. for city road 

and trail improvements for city parks and Hoover Nature Trails. /Move to action. 

Jones reminded the Council that the information provided were quotes for chip & seal prices for 2019.  No 

projects were scheduled at this time and that the quotes just guarantee the price.  



 

 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1813.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Miller, Stoolman. 

NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Ellyson, Pierce.  Motion carried.   

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones invited the Council to a public meeting on the I-80 widening project presented by the Iowa DOT on June 5th 

at the Town Hall.  Jones also reported that he has been in contact with the Service Line Warranty program 

personnel and that they committed to try getting local contractors certified to perform warranty work.  Laughlin 

said he reached out to the City of West Liberty who also uses this program and they have had no issues.  

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

No report. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

No report. 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

Goodweiler asked if staff had reached out the 8th grade students regarding the community garden project.  Russell 

replied that she had and was awaiting a return response.   

Laughlin said the city should be hearing soon regarding the derelict grant.  He also suggested that he and staff 

members get together and create a punch list for Cubby Park and the remaining outstanding items.  The final 

completion date is Friday, May 24th.  Russell said she didn’t believe the items would be complete by that time. 

Laughlin also said that radio communication with the County is an ongoing issue. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 8:53 p.m.  

       

 

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                           Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 10, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Liquor License Renewal for Kum & Go #254, 

located at 620 S. Downey Street, West Branch IA 52358. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  May 28, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Approve Class E Liquor license with privileges: Class B Carryout Wine permit, Class C 

Carryout Beer permit, and Sunday Sales permit for Kum & Go, LC, dba Kum & Go #254.  

Renewal effective 7/1/2019 to 6/30/2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 
 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 10, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  May 28, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to City Council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 10, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading Ordinance 766 – An Ordinance Vacating Alleys 

Located in the City of West Branch. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy Clerk 

DATE:  May 28, 2019 
     
BACKGROUND:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 
Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

 **** 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Second Reading – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:       

 

 Non Consent Item 1 

The following vacations have been reviewed by Public Works for utilities within the alleys 

proposed to be vacated and none were found.  The following alleys are being proposed: 

 

1.  That certain 16-foot alley located to the north of Lot 19 and the south of Lot 20 in  

 In Townsend’s and Gue’s Addition to West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa; and 

 

 (Ordinance 631, passed on June 18, 2007 was incorrect, this corrects that alley vacation.) 

 

2. That certain alley located between Lots B and C in Block 47 in Joseph Steer’s Plat , 

  West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa  

 

(By request of Chris Kofoed.   Ordinance 179 vacated an adjacent alley 1956, but this 

portion was missed.) 

 

3.  That certain alley located adjacent to and south of Lot 49 in Block 6 in the town of 

Cameron, now City of West Branch, Iowa.  

 

       (By request of Bonnie Willoughby, property owner of 630 E. Main St., would like     

          to build a garage in the rear of her property.) 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, West Branch City Attorney, PO Box 5640, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319)351-2277 

Return to:  City of West Branch, 110 N. Poplar Street, P.O. Box 218, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (319)643-5888 
 
 

                      

 ORDINANCE 766 

 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING ALLEYS 

 

 1.  BE IT ENACTED by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa, that the 

following alleys within the corporate limits are hereby vacated: 

 

1. That certain 16’ alley located to the north of Lot 19, and to the south of Lot 20 

in Townsend and Gue’s Addition, to West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa,  

2. That certain alley located between Lots B and C in Block 47 in Joseph Steer’s 

Plat No. 2, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa; and 

3. That certain alley located adjacent to and south of Lot 49 in Block 6 in the town 

of Cameron, now City of West Branch, Iowa 

 

The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to sign a quitclaim deed 

conveying said alley to the adjacent owners. 

 

Said quitclaim deed shall include a provision stating that the conveyance is subject to an 

easement for the purpose of the installation and maintenance of utilities. 

 

   

 

 Passed and approved this 24th day of June, 2019. 

 

 Read First Time:      May 20, 2019 

 Read Second Time:  June 10, 2019 

            Read Third Time:     June 24, 2019 

        

       ____________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 10, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading Amending Chapter 50 of the Code of Ordinances:  
Entitled, “Nuisance Abatement Procedure”. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  May 28, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

As identified in our FY 2018-2019 Goal Setting Process, revamping our nuisance process has 

been an important priority, particularly as the city continues to grow and maintaining property 

values are critical for residential lending and real-estate marketing.  Nuisance abatement can 

have a major impact on the viability of neighborhood and be a drain on local government 

resources.  Containing blighting influences can become overwhelming and result in 

disinvestment in areas of the city, and create a weak link in the overall development of a growing 

community. 

 

This item is a draft ordinance that will provide a greater ability to increase enforcement, speed 

up resolution of violations, and clearly communicate property maintenance expectations.  The 

Mayor and several key staff members have attended the 2019 Nuisance Abatement Conference 

presented by the Iowa League of Cities regarding this matter.  We expect to start the discussion 

and over the next three City Council meetings review, amend, and approve a version of the draft 

ordinance (Chapter 50) that is attached to this item.  

 

The current version has been updated since the discussion item version last City Council 

meeting.  This version added the terms “appearance and clutter” in the definition of nuisance 

(section 50.01).  We opted out of the section 305 of the 2012 International Property Maintenance 

Code entitled Interior Structure.  We also added description regarding the Nuisance Hearing 

Committee in sub section 50.10 entitled Request for Hearing. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the First Reading – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

City of Clinton 



 

 

  



 

 

  



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 10, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1814 – A Resolution Setting Salaries for Appointed Officers 

and Employees of the City of West Branch, Iowa for Fiscal Year 2019 – 

2020. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  May 28, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The City Council approved the City Administrators proposed Total Employee 

Compensation for FY20 at the February 4, 2019 City Council meeting.   

 

The proposal included a $4000.00 increase to the Finance Officer position and approved a 

2.8% COLA for all other employees.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1814 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1814 

 

A RESOLUTION SETTING SALARIES FOR APPOINTED OFFICERS AND 

EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa: 

 

Section 1.  The following persons and positions named shall be paid the salaries or hourly wages 

indicated and the City Clerk is authorized to issue warrants/checks, less legally required or 

authorized deductions for the amounts set out below, bi-weekly, and make such contributions to 

IPERS and Social Security or other purposes as required by law or authorization of the Council: 

 
Position                          Name                                 Wage                      Basic Hours  

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Salaried Employees: 

 

City Administrator/Clerk Redmond Jones II                $94,370.42  Salaried 

 

Police Chief Mike Horihan                $79,363.72  Salaried 

 

Public Works Director  Matt Goodale                $69,133.58  Salaried 

 

Finance Director Gordon Edgar                $61,522.67  Salaried 

 

Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell                $49,916.95  Salaried 

 

 
Position                          Name                          Hourly/Annual Wage         Basic Hours  

___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Regular Full-Time: 

 

Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick                $22.64 / $47,091.20  40 

 

Police Sergeant John Hanna                $30.25 / $62,920.00  40 

 

Police Officer Derek Holmes                $25.27 / $52,561.60  40 

 

Police Officer Zachary Murdock                $20.05 / $41, 704.00  40 

 

Lead Water Operator Tim Moss                $26.12 / $54,329.60  40 

 

Safety/Facilities Coordinator Paul O’Neil                $23.82 / $49,545.60  40 

 

Water/Wastewater Operator Nevin Tucker                $20.05 / $41,704.00  40 

 



 

 

Regular Part-Time: 

 

PT Building Inspector Terry Goerdt                $37.01  20 

 

PT Police Officer Catherine Steen                $20.97  30 

 

PT Public Works Employee Gerry Brick                $17.30  25 

 

PT Public Works Employee Benjamin Litscher                $14.68  30 

 

PT Park & Rec Employee Jamie Tucker                $13.11             20 

 

 

SECTION 2.  All the above employees are subject to the City of West Branch Personnel Policies 

and Procedures applicable to their department. 

 

SECTION 3.  This resolution will be effective upon final passage of the City Council. 

 

SECTION 4.  The hourly wages and salaries established in this resolution shall be effective July 

1, 2019. 

 

*  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

Passed and approved this 10th day of June, 2019. 

 

    

                                                                                                                                      

_____________________________________ 

                 Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 10, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1815 – A Resolution Approving an Agreement between the Iowa 

Department of Natural Resources and the City of West Branch, Accepting the 

terms of a Derelict Building Grant for the Amount of $50,960. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  May 13, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement company with more than 130 

locations in six states, and employs its own crew that not only pours foundations and walls but 

constructs plants. Croell Redi-mix operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East Green Street which 

is ranged north to south between Main Street and College Street. While planning for a plant 

expansion at that site, the city proposed a land swap. Instead of having this industrial use expand 

its operations in this transitional area that exist between a celebrated historic downtown with 14 

buildings on the National Historic Register, and a well-established neighborhood known for its 

mature tree line and eclectic housing; the city pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of 

industrial park property for the aforementioned 4 acre site. The swap has concluded and the city 

is moving forward with make the site more enticing to potential developers. 
 

 The City has budgeted / invested $400,000 of which more than half is already used. 
 

 Land Swamp 
 

 This has been done by developing a Planned Unit Development Ordinance with this site has one 
of the focal points. 

 
 Phase One and Two Environmental Studies 

 
 Planning Process (Impact 7G) – Grant Funded 

 
 Derelict Building Grant  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
The Grantee shall deliver all information and complete all tasks detailed in the Special 
Conditions.  The rights and obligations of the parties to this Agreement shall be subject 
to and governed by the Special Conditions, the General Conditions, and the 
Appendices.  To the extent of any inconsistency between the Special Conditions, the 
General Conditions, and the Appendices and any specifications or other conditions that 
are made a part of this Agreement by reference or otherwise, the provisions of the 
Special Conditions and the General Conditions shall control.  To the extent of any 
inconsistency between the Special Conditions and the General Conditions, the 
provisions of the Special Conditions shall control. 
 
 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
ARTICLE I.  IDENTIFICATION OF PARTIES, PROJECT, AND PROJECT AREA 
 
This Agreement is by and between the City of West Branch (hereinafter referred to as 
the Grantee) and the Iowa Department of Natural Resources (hereinafter referred to as 
the Department) for the purpose of hiring a licensed contractor for abating asbestos and 
hiring a licensed contractor to deconstruct the buildings at 325 E. Green Street in West 
Branch, Iowa (hereinafter referred to as the Project). 

 
 
ARTICLE II.  DESIGNATION OF OFFICIALS 
 
3.1 Department.  The DNR Project Officer shall negotiate on behalf of the 

Department and, subject to the approval of the Department, make any changes 
to this Agreement. 

 
2.2 Grantee.  The Grantee Project Officer is authorized to execute any changes in 

the terms, conditions, or amounts specified in this Agreement. 
 
2.3 Key Agreement Personnel. 

Scott Flagg, Iowa Department of Natural Resources, 515-725-8318 
Redmond Jones III, Grantee Project Officer, 319-643-5888 Ext. 15 

 
 
ARTICLE III. TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
3.1 Term of Agreement.  The Agreement remains open for the Term of Agreement 

as stated on the title page of this Agreement.  The Agreement and all obligations 
of the Department contained herein may be terminated upon the occurrence of 
one of the following: a) the Agreement is terminated under Section 11 of the 
General Conditions; or b) if there has been no disbursement of Derelict Building 
Grant Program funds within three (3) months immediately following the 
announcement of Environmental Protection Commission approval, unless an 
extension is requested in writing by the Grantee and approved by the Department 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1815 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE IOWA 

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH 

ACCEPTING THE TERMS OF A DERELICT BUILDING GRANT FOR THE 

AMOUNT OF $50,960. 

 WHEREAS, the property known as 325 E. Green Street was purchased in 1989 by 

Croell Redi-mix, a cement company operated on a four-acre parcel and while planning a plant 

expansion at that site, the City proposed a land swap; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Instead of having this industrial use expand in this transitional area where 

a historic downtown and a well-establish neighborhood exist and would have been negatively 

impacted, the City is pursuing other redevelopment options; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the derelict building grant program is intended to assist small communities 

improve the attractive and appearance of their jurisdiction by providing financial assistance to 

address derelict buildings; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this grant is in the form of 50% reimbursement for deconstruction activities 

of which removing the derelict structures and concrete removal from the 325 E. Green site would 

apply; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to accept the aforementioned Grant 

and the terms within the Derelict Building Grant; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch that the Agreement between the Iowa Department of Natural Resources and the City of 

West Branch Accepting the Derelict Building Grant for an Amount of $50,960 is approved.   

 

*  *  *  *  *  * 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 10th day of June, 2019 
 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 10, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1816 – A Resolution Approving the Bid Requirements and 

Specifications for Asbestos Removal located at 325 E. Green Street. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  May 16, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Croell Redi-mix operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East Green Street which is ranged north 

to south between Main Street and College Street. While planning for a plant expansion at that 

site, the city proposed a land swap. Instead of having this industrial use expand its operations in 

this transitional area that exist between a celebrated historic downtown with 14 buildings on the 

National Historic Register, and a well-established neighborhood known for its mature tree line 

and eclectic housing; the city pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of industrial park 

property for the aforementioned 4 acre site. The swap has concluded and the city is moving 

forward with make the site more enticing to potential developers. 
 

 The City has budgeted / invested $400,000 of which more than half is already used. 
 

 Land Swamp 
 

 This has been done by developing a Planned Unit Development Ordinance with this site has one 

of the focal points. 
 

 Phase One and Two Environmental Studies 
 

 Planning Process (Impact 7G) – Grant Funded 
 

 Derelict Building Grant  

o Asbestos Removal 

o Demolition Building(s) 

o Concrete Removal and Grading 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

BID REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ASBESTOS 
REMOVAL OF 325 E Green Street 

 
 
The City of West Branch, hereinafter referred to as “West Branch,” “City,” or “Applicant” is 
seeking sealed bids from qualified asbestos contractors to remove asbestos from buildings 
located at 325 Green Street.  
 
Contractor certifies that it is an Iowa –registered contractor, an Iowa Permitted Asbestos 
Abatement Contractor and all personnel who perform work on this project will have 
appropriate Iowa asbestos licenses. The Contractor must include with this bid 
submittal a copy of their current permit issued by Iowa Workforce Development 
and current Iowa Contractor Registration Certificate. 
 
Asbestos Removal Scope of Work:  
 

1. The successful bidding contractor shall furnish all tools, labor and materials for the 
proposed asbestos removal in accordance with all applicable plans, specifications, 
codes and ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa, asbestos Statutes and Rules 
(published by the Iowa Division of Labor), 40 CFR Parts 61, NESHAP, and any other 
Federal Regulations, including but not limited to OSHA and EPA as well as all 
applicable State Regulations, including but not limited to the Iowa DNR. Work to be 
performed includes the following: 

 

 Remove ACM as identified in the accompanying Asbestos Survey in accordance 
with all applicable State, federal and Local regulations 

 Document amounts of ACM removed from the subject structure 
 Document ACM disposal at the designated landfill site through the use of Load 

Tickets and Landfill Tickets 
 Provide information as requested by the City.  

 
2. Asbestos Containing Material Disposal Site: The Scott Area Landfill has been the 

designated locations for disposal of asbestos containing material waste. The landfill is 
located at 11555 110th Avenue (County Road Y-48); Davenport, Iowa 52804. 

 
Overall Project Information: 
 
1. A Project Manager from ECIA, on behalf of the City of West Branch and/or City of 

West Branch Staff will monitor the performance of this Contract. Direction by the City 
in this proposal shall also mean direction by the Project Manager. The Project Manager 
and/or City Staff will not have the authority to grant deviations from this Contract.  

 
2. The Contractor shall maintain the work site to appropriate use standards, safety 

standards, and regulatory requirements.  All materials shall be removed, hauled, and 
disposed according to applicable federal, state and local requirements.  

 
3. The Contractor shall be responsible for providing personal protective equipment (PPE) 

to its agents and employees and for ensuring its proper utilization while at the job site. 



 

 

This shall include, but not limited to: a hard hat, safety vest, goggles and steel-toed 
shoes/boots. Additionally, those actually working in the hot zone will be equipped with 
PPE appropriate for such work under State/OSHA regulations. 
 

4. Hold Harmless: The Bidder agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
City of West Branch, it’s officers and employees, State of Iowa, and IDNR their 
agencies and agents from any and all claims, damages, liability, loss and expense of 
every kind and nature made, arising out of, resulting from or incurred by reason of 
any claims, actions or suits based upon or alleging bodily injury, including death, or 
property damage rising out of resulting from the Contractor’s operation under this 
contract, whether by themselves or by any subcontractor or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by either of them. Contractor is not and shall not be deemed an 
agent or employee of the City of West Branch. 
 

5. Pricing:  This is a LUMP SUM PRICE CONTRACT. This is a unit price, lump sum 
contract; all bids, bid components and bid tabulations are on a “not to exceed” basis. 
Change orders, additions, deletions and any other changes in the scope of work, will 
take the form of written amendments mutually agreed to by Contractor and Applicant. 
In the case of mathematical errors, transposition of figures and the like, actual bid 
tabulation totals will take precedence over summary bid figures. 
 

6. Estimated Quantities: The Applicant does not guarantee any quantity of work under 
this contract. Actual quantities, whether lesser or greater than estimated by the 
Contractor on the bid tabulation sheet for each address, will not affect the pricing 
process as indicated, nor the total project price bid by Contractor and accepted by 
Applicant. The Contractor is to indicate on each bid tabulation sheet his estimated 
quantities of debris and fill material. Payment will be made based on these quantities 
regardless of the actual amounts involved. 
 

7. Emergency Planning – Health and Safety Plan: An emergency plan (Health and Safety 
Plan- HASP) shall be developed prior to work commencing. This must be in compliance 
with OSHA 29 CFR 1910, Occupational Safety and Health Standards and OSHA 29 CFR 
1926, Safety and Health Regulations for Construction. 

 
The emergency procedures in the Health and Safety Plan shall include: 

 
 telephone numbers for potential emergency response (police, fire 

department, and emergency medical needs),  

 the location of the nearest telephone and the location to the nearest 
hospital. A map showing streets with directions of the hospital shall also 
be provided in the plan. 

 considerations of fire, explosion, toxic atmospheres, electrical hazards, 
slips, trips and falls, confined spaces, heat -related and other injuries.  

 
Written procedures shall be developed and staff training in the procedures shall 
be provided to all employees. Employees shall be informed of the Health and 
Safety Planning and trained in evacuation/response procedures in the event of 
workplace emergencies. This plan shall be filed with Applicant prior to the 



 

 

commencement of any work. Contractor must provide certification that all staff 
have received HASP training. 

 
8. Non-adherence to bid specifications: Non–adherence to bid specifications in the 

submission of required bid documents may cause the entire bid to be considered non-
responsive and may be thrown out.  
 

9. Monitoring: This project is totally or partially funded by IDNR. Site monitor(s) may be 
present to observe and monitor worksite procedures. ECIA on behalf of the City of 
West Branch and/or City of West Branch Staff maybe onsite to monitor work.  
 

10. Scheduling: No weekend work is allowed without prior approval from the Project 
Manager/City Staff. The Contractor must provide a 72-hour notice before the start of 
the project, the start date must fall within the 10 day after the Notice to Proceed has 
been issued. The 72-hour notice must include start date, and start time. Work is 
allowed between 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. Failure to start on 
the start day or at the start time given may result in a $100.00 per hour fine capped at 
$1,000.00 per day. The fine will be subtracted from the total project cost.  
 

11. Bid Evaluations: Bid evaluations will be made individually.  Price will not be the sole 
determining factor in this award.  Other criteria as listed in “Bid Award Criteria” below 
will be considered, as well as any other factors that the Applicant determines may 
affect the suitability of the bid for their requirements. A Contractor’s submission of a 
bid constitutes their acceptance of the evaluation technique and their recognition and 
acceptance that the Applicant will use subjective judgment. 
 

12. Award Criteria: Award of the bid shall be made to the lowest and best responsive and 
responsible Bidder(s) meeting the specification set forth herein.  In addition to the 
quoted price, the following is a substantial list (in no particular order of importance) of 
the criteria that will be used in our determination of Bidder’s responsibility and 
suitability: 
 

 Satisfactory experience in the timely completion of demolitions; 
 Company’s reputation and financial status; 
 Past experience and service provided by the bidder to the Applicant; 
 Favorable references from firms with projects of similar scopes that 

indicate that the bidder has the ability to carry out the services and 
provide the products specified; 

 Company’s ability to meet the Applicant’s insurance and bonding 
requirements; 

 Strength of bidder’s hiring and training programs 
 Company’s ability to immediately fully staff the project with 

certified, licensed staff; and, 

 Strength of the company’s safety program and history. 
 
The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids; to request rebids; to waive 
irregularities and technicalities in bids, such as shall best serve its requirements and 



 

 

interests.  If determined that a contract for some or the entire project should be 
awarded, the process of awarding the Contract shall be as follows: 
 

 The Applicant shall determine which bidder has submitted the lowest 
and most responsive and responsible bid, who has best met the bid 
criteria as set out above and make its recommendation to the City 
Council. 

 The City Council shall consider a resolution awarding the contract and 
authorizing the Mayor to sign this contract on behalf of the Applicant.  
No contract shall be deemed to be created and exist, unless and until 
the Applicant adopts a resolution awarding this contract and authorizing 
the Mayor to execute this contract. 

 The Mayor signs this contract. 
 The Applicant issues a “Notice to Proceed” to the contractor.  The 

Notice to Proceed shall constitute authorization for the Contractor to 
commence the work. 

 
If the Applicant determines that all the bids received should be rejected, the bidders 
shall be notified by the Applicant accordingly.  At that point, the Applicant may, or may 
not, re-bid the project 

 
13. Contract Terms: If a bid is accepted, the successful bidder shall sign a contract. The 

terms of the contract will include, but not be limited to the following: 
 

i. The representatives of the Contractor shall familiarize themselves with 
the specifications and conditions which will affect the project. It will be 
the responsibility of representatives of the Contractor to make a 
personal examination of the job site and physical conditions which may 
affect the performance under the Contract. 

ii. The work shall commence within ten (10) days after the notice to 
proceed and work shall be completed within thirty (30) days of 
notification. Time extensions will be granted for those portions of the 
project affected by inclement weather conditions.  

iii. Payment shall be requested in writing by the Contractor on a properly 
executed claim, bill or statement. Payment will be made to the 
Contractor within forty-five (45) days after the submittal of an invoice. 

iv. The Contractor shall not begin work on any asbestos removal and shall 
not begin work on until after the contract has been approved by the 
City Council and a completely executed copy has been returned to the 
Contractor with Notice to Proceed.  

v. During the performance of the Contract, the Contractor, its assignees 
and successors in interest shall comply with the anti-discrimination laws 
of the State of Iowa, as contained in Chapter 19B and 551 of the Code 
of Iowa, which will be incorporated by reference and made part of the 
contract. 

vi. This project is totally or partially funded by IDNR. Site monitor(s) may 
be present to observe and monitor survey procedures at the worksite. 



 

 

vii. Government-Mandated Provisions. Since this project activity is funded 
in whole or in part by the Federal Government, or an Agency thereof, 
Federal Law requires that the City’s contracts relating to the project 
include certain provisions. Depending upon the type of work or services 
provided and the dollar value of the resultant contract, some of the 
provisions set forth in this Section may not apply to the Contractor or to 
the work or services to be provided hereunder; however, the provisions 
will nonetheless be set forth in the contract to cause it to comply with 
Federal Law. Parenthetical comments in the following paragraphs are 
taken from 44CFR Section 13.36(i). 

1. Remedies. In the event that the Contractor defaults in the 
performance or observance of any covenant, agreement or 
obligation set forth in the Contract, and if such default remains 
uncured for a period of 5 days after notice of default has been 
given by City to Contractor, then City will have the right to take 
any one or more of the following steps, at its option: 

a. By mandamus or other suit, action proceeding at law or 
in equity, require Contract to perform its obligations and 
covenants hereunder, or enjoin any acts or things which 
may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the City 
under the contract, or obtain compensation for damages 
caused to the City by any such default;  

b. Have access to and inspect, examine and make copies of 
all books and records of Contractor which pertain to the 
project;  

c. Make no further disbursements, and demand immediate 
repayment from Contractor of any funds previously 
disbursed under the Contract; 

d. Terminate the Contract by delivery to Contractor a 
written notice of termination; and/or 

e. Take whatever other action at law or in equity may be 
necessary or desirable to enforce the obligations and 
covenants of Contractor under the Contract, including 
but not limited to the recovery of funds. 
 

No delay in enforcing the provisions of the Contract as to any breach or violation shall 
impair, damage or waive the right of City to enforce the same or to obtain relief against or 
recover the continuation or repetition of such breach or violation or any similar breach or 
violation thereof at any later time or times. In the event that City prevails against 
Contractor shall pay the reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses incurred by City. 
 

2. Termination for Cause and for Convenience. City shall have the 
right to terminate the Contract at any time by delivering to 
Contractor 7 days’ advance written notice of intent to terminate. 

3. Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity,” 
as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and 
as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR 



 

 

Chapter 60).  (Applies to all construction contracts awarded in 
excess of $10,000 by grantees and their contractors or sub 
grantees) 

4. Contractor shall comply with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act 
(18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor 
regulations (29 CFR Part 3).  (Applies to all contracts and 
subcontracts for construction or repair) 

5. Contractor shall comply with Sections 103 and 107 of the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-
330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 
CFR Part 5).  (Applies to construction contracts awarded by 
grantees and sub grantees in excess of $2,000, and in excess of 
$2,500 for other contracts which involve the employment of 
mechanics or laborers) 

6. Patent Rights and Copyrights.   With respect to any discovery or 
invention which arises or is developed in the course of or under 
this Agreement, Contractor is responsible for complying with 
requirements pertaining to patent rights, as defined by the 
awarding agency. With respect to any publication, documents, 
or data that arises or is developed in the course of or under this 
Agreement, the Contractor is responsible for complying with 
requirements pertaining to copyright, as defined by the 
awarding agency. 

7. Access to Documents.  Contractor shall exercise best efforts to 
maintain communication with City’s personnel whose 
involvement in the project is necessary or advisable for 
successful and timely completion of the work of the project, 
including but not limited to the closing of specific transactions. 
Communications between the parties shall be verbal or in 
writing, as requested the parties or as dictated by the subject 
matter to be addressed.  During the term of this Agreement and 
for the ensuing record-retention period, Contractor shall make 
any or all project records available upon reasonable request, 
and in any event within two (2) business days of request, to 
City, Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR), State of 
Iowa, and any other agency of State or Federal government, or 
the duly authorized representatives of any of the foregoing, that 
has provided funding or oversight for the project, for the 
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and/or 
transcriptions.  For purposes of this section, “records” means 
any and all books, documents, papers and records of any type 
or nature that are directly pertinent to this Agreement.  
Contractor agrees to furnish, upon termination of this Agreement 
and upon demand by the City, copies of all basic notes and 
sketches, charts, computations, and any other data prepared or 
obtained by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement, without 
cost and without restrictions or limitation as to the use relative 
to specific projects covered under this Agreement. In such 



 

 

event, the Contractor shall not be liable for the City’s use of such 
documents on other projects. 

8. Retention of Documents.  Contractor shall maintain all project 
records for a minimum period of three (3) years after the date 
of final payment for services rendered under this Agreement. 

9. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, 
orders, or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean 
Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act 
(33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental 
Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR Part 15).  (Applies to 
contracts, subcontracts, and sub grants of amounts in excess of 
$100,000) 

10. Energy Efficiency Standards. The Contractor shall comply with 
mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency 
that are contained in the State Energy Conservation Plan issued 
pursuant to the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-
163, 89 Stat. 871). [53 FR 8078, 8087, Mar. 11, 1988, as 
amended at 60 FR 19639, 19646, Apr. 19, 1995]. 

 
14. Conflict of terms: If there is a conflict between the terms of these Special Terms and 

Conditions and the Letter of Agreement, the Special Terms and Conditions shall 
prevail. 
 

15. All bidders must meet the following bonding and insurance requirements: 
(1) All bidders must submit the following: a bid guarantee equivalent to five 

percent of the bid price. The “bid guarantee” shall consist of a firm 
commitment such as a bid bond, certified check, or other negotiable 
instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon 
acceptance of his bid, execute such contractual documents as may be 
required with the time specified. 
 

If awarded the contract, the successful bidder must provide the following bonds prior 
to signing the Contract with the City. 

(2) A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the 
contract price. A “performance bond” is one executed in connection with a 
contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor’s obligations under such 
contract. 

(3) A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the 
contract price. A “payment bond”. A payment bond is executed in 
connection with a contract to assure payments as required by law of all 
persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided 
for in the contract.  

(4) The Contractor awarded this work shall provide the following with the 
Applicant listed as certificate holder: 

 Commercial General Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of 
$1,000,000.00                      

 Automobile Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of 
$1,000,000.00                         



 

 

 Worker’s Compensation and Employer Liability Insurance in the 
minimum amount of $1,000,00.00                      

 Pollution Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of 
$1,000,000.00 

(5) The successful bidder will protect and hold harmless the City, the US 
Government, FEMA, State of Iowa, their agencies and agents from claims 
and damages of any kind arising out of the performance of this contract. 

(6) The successful bidder will add the following to all liability coverages: 
a. The company and the insured expressly agree and state that the 

purchase of this policy of insurance by the insured does not waive 
any of the defenses of governmental immunity available to the 
insured under Iowa Code Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it 
may be amended from time to time. 

b. The company and the insured further agree that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under Iowa Code Section 670.4 as it now 
exists and as it may be amended from time to time.  

 
16. The Contractor will be paid contract price for all items satisfactorily completed. Such    
     payments shall be full compensation for asbestos removal and disposal, for all permits, 
     licenses, inspections, for complying with all laws, rules, regulations and ordinances,  
     including safety, and for furnishing all materials, equipment and labor to complete the  
     work, in accordance with the plans and these specifications. 
 

Contractors shall familiarize themselves with the specifications and conditions which 
will affect the project. It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to make a 
personal examination of the job site(s) and the physical conditions which 
may affect his bidding and performance under the contract. 

 
17. Sales Tax Exemption Certificates: The bidder shall not include sales tax in the bid. The 

City of West Branch will distribute tax exemption certificates and authorization letters 
to the Contractor and all subcontractors who are identified. The Contractor and 
subcontractor may make copies of the tax exemption certificates and provide a copy 
to each supplier providing construction materials. These tax exemption certificates and 
authorization letters are applicable only for this specific project under the contract. 

 
18. Payment will be made to the Contractor within forty-five (45) days after the 

completion  
and acceptance thereof by the City Council. Payment shall be requested in writing by 
the Contractor on a properly executed claim, bill or statement. 

 
The invoice shall clearly state: 
1. The Contractor name,  
2. The address of each structure and GPS coordinates 
3. Description of work performed, and 
4. Date of asbestos removal 

 
 



 

 

Invoices shall be billed to: 
 City of West Branch  
 Attention: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator   
 City Hall, P.O. Box 218 

West Branch, Iowa 52358 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
EXHIBIT "A" 

Asbestos Contractor  
 
 
Company Information & Approval That the Information provided is Truthful and 
Accurate:  
 
Contractor is an: Individual   Partnership    Corporation    Firm    
 
Company Name:          
 
By:            
   
Title:          
 
Address:         
 
City:       State:     
 
Phone Number:        
 
Company Authorized Representative Signature: 
________________________________________ 
 
 
References: 
 
Please Provide 3 references of asbestos surveying and monitoring of abatement of projects 
completed by your company: 
 
1).__________________________________________________________________________                            
       Project                                               Contact                                      Phone Number 
 
 
2).__________________________________________________________________________                            
       Project                                               Contact                                      Phone Number 
 
 
3).__________________________________________________________________________                            
       Project                                               Contact                                      Phone Number 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1816 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE BID REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR ASBESTOS REMOVAL LOCATED AT 325 E. GREEN STREET. 

 

 WHEREAS, the property known as 325 E. Green Street was purchased in 1989 by 

Croell Redi-mix, a cement company operated on a four-acre parcel and while planning a plant 

expansion at that site, the City proposed a land swap; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Instead of having this industrial use expand in this transitional area where 

a historic downtown and a well-establish neighborhood would have been negatively impacted; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, removing the asbestos from the derelict building(s) on this site, is one of 

the pre-development activities that will assist the site to be more enticing to potential developers; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to accept the aforementioned Bid 

Requirements and Specifications in order to solicit a contractor / vendor the work needed as 

prescribed by the Derelict Building Grant and service described therein; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch that the Bid Requirements and Specifications for Asbestos removal located at 325 E. 

Green Street is approved.   

 

*  *  *  *  *  * 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 10th day of June, 2019 
 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 10, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item:  Consideration of a Request to Pave the Alley between 

4th and 5th. . 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  May 16, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

We have received citizen complaints.  The added strain on labor time due to the cleaning up the 

gravel after rain fall has been of concern.  It is also of safety concern due to the risk loose rock 

pose for vehicles traveling roads cluttered with these rocks, this is of special concern for motor 

cycles. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 10, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item:  Consideration of a Request to allow the residents of 

the west side of Scott Street to maintain public right-of-way along the 

“Wapsi-West” creek. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  May 16, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Some time ago, the City made the decision to mow the public right-of-way along the “Wapsi-

West” creek.  This was in many cases against the desires of the residents who live on the west 

side of Scott Street between West Orange and Main. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 7 


